United Nations Nations Unies

ECONOMIC CONSELL /on 1 /o5 50
AND | ECONOMIQUE 25 1arch 1945
SOCIAL COUNCIL ~ ET SOCIAL  eemoms: smocsss

%

'ECONCMIC AND EMPLOYMENT COMMISSION
SUB-COMMISSION ON ECONCMIC DEVELOPMENT

Third Session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE FIFTIETH MEETING

Held at ILake Success, New York,
on Wednesday, 23 March 1949, at 11 a.m,

CONTENTS ¢ Discusqion of central problems of econcmic development with
special emphasis on mobilization of financial resources for
econcmic development (E/CN.1/Sub.3/25, E/CN.1/Sub.3/W.6,
E/CN.1/sub.3/M.5, E/CN.1/Sub.3/W.8, E/CN.1/Suw.3/W.9,
E/CN.1/Sub.3/W.7)

Chairman: Mr. V., K, R, V. RAO
Members: Mr, J, N, GUIMARAES
Mr, D, K. LIEU
Mr. J. PATEK
Mr., M, BRAVO JL)NEZ
Mr. A. P. MCROZOV

Mr. E. G. COLIADO

\

Any corrections of this record should be sutmitted in writing, in
either of the working languages (English or French), and within two
working days, to Mr. E. Delavenay, Director, Official Records Division,
Roon F-852, Lake Success., Corrections should be acccmpanied by or
incorporated in a letter, on headed notepaper, bearing the appropriate
smgﬁdg}@ega@d&k@l@%ﬁ in an envelope marked '"Urgent". Corrections .
cani be dealt with more speedily 3y the services concerned if delegations

willl be E;:é’oii aenoﬁéh also ul»to incorporate them in a mimeographed copy of

thel record. v LATIONY
S ARER AN

[ -




E/CN 1/Sub.3/SR 50
Page 2

Representatives of gpecialized agencies:

Mr, A, A, EVANS International Labour
Organization (ILO)

Mr. M, EZEKIEL Food and Agriéulture
Organization (FAO)

Mr. S, ARNALDO United Nations Educational,
Scientific and Cultural
Organization (UNESCO)

Mr, E. LOPEZ-HERRARTE International Bank for
Reccnstruction and Development

Mr., H, Van der VAIK International Monetary Fund (IMF)
Mr. G, HILL World Health Organization (WHO)

Consultants from non-governmental organizations:

Category A:

Miss T. SENDER American Federation of Labor
) (AF of L)
Miss E. SANSCM International Chamber of

Camerce  (ICC)-

Secretariat:
Mr. A. DORFMAN Secretary of the Sub-Commission

DISCUSSION OF CENTRAL PROBLEMS OF ECONCMIC DEVELOPMENT WITH SPECIAL
EMPHASIS ON MOBILIZATION OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES FCR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
(E/CN.1/Sub.3/25, E/CN.1/Sub.3/W.6, E/CN.1/Sub.3/W.5, E/CN.1/Sub.3/W.8,
E/CN.1/Sub.3/W.9, E/CN.1/Sub.3/W.T)

L]

The CHAIRMAN opened the discussion and said it would bde

useful for the Sub-Commission to decide on the order in which it

- should examine the various questions involved. He added that documents
had been made available to the Sub-Commission for a discussion of
the ﬁajor aspects of the mobilization of financial resources for
econamic development. |

Financial resources could be obtained fram two major sources --

one damestic and the other foreign. In connexion with domestic financial
resources, the Sub-Commission could refer to three documents prepared by
the InternatipnaIAMonetary Fund on banking and financial institutions
and their role in the mobilization of financial resources for econcmic
development in Chile, Egypt and Mexico. In connexion with financial
resources ariéing out of foreign trade -- which was a borderline case

between damestic and foreign financial resources -- members could

/refer to



E/CN 1/Sub.3/SR 50
Page 3

‘"refer to an analysis of the pribe factor in foreign trade which had
beefi prepared by the Secretariat_in a‘repoft on Post-War Price Belations
in Trade between Underdeveloped‘aﬁd Industriélized Countries, and
also the Uwited Nations publication, "Review of International
Cammodity Problems, 1948", Two sets of documents were available
regarding foreign financing: one surveyed the international capital
movements during the inter-war period and the post-war pericd, '
while the other included reports on foreign investments in Brazil,
China and Mexico.

. He wished members to state whether they wanted to have a
ggnéral.diécussion first, followed by an examination of domestic |
financial resources, foreign trade and foreign financing. The aim
of a general discussion would be to survey the entire problem of
financiné econcmic develorment, the questions it rdised and the
part which should be played by dcmestic and foreign investments
respectively. ) . . B 4

Mr.'PATEK pointed out that the report on International
Capital Movements During the Inter-war Period referred to Czechoslovakia
as a semi-developed country. He felt that it would be better to speak
of "under—induétrialized" rather than "underdeveloped" countries,

since the latter were often very advahced culturally, artistically,
and otherwise. Furthermore, he could not gather frcu the survey what

bearing the movement of capital had had on the indgstrial development

of the so-called underdevelopéd countries.

The CHAIRMAN made it clear that ths tefm~"uﬁder-deve}oped"
applied mainly to the industrial field so that it really meant

"under-industrialized". This matter had been clarified during the

1
'

first session of the Sub-Ccmmission.

Mr. BRAVO JIMENEZ said that the purpose of the .general
discussion should be to determine the scope and limits of thefproblem
of financing, considering'that it was not an independent or isolated
element in the proc;ss of econamic development. '

+

Mr. MOROZOV said that as the problem of the mobilization
of financial resources for econcmic development was the most important
question on the agenda-of the current session it would be useful to(
have a general discussion onhitem 3 first, after which the Sub-Coarmission

could examine the various documents available. The Secretariat had’

/succeeded in



E/CN 1/Sub.3/SR 50
Page 4 :

succeeded in providipg more dbbuments, and documents providing concrete
facts, for the present session. t |
Mr, EZEKIEL wanted to outline what FAO was doing under the
instructioés of the 1948 Conference. For the FAO,;the Present discussion
of the Sub-Ccumission was very timely, and if the Repdrt of the S/C
in its pfesent gession had been 9vailable a month sarlier, the FAO could
have examined its oﬁn Report in the light of fhe views of the Sub~Ccumission.
The 1948 session of the FAO Conference had called attention to the
reccomendations of the Preparatory Cormiseion on World Food Proposals which
read as followsi . '
"...That the progress of dqvelopmen% be kept under continuous
review so that if at any time a_deyelopment project or program -:
of significance to agriqqltﬁre Justified on oﬁher grounds has been
uneble to go forward for lack of adequate intermational financial
facilities, the Director-General of FAO end the Board of Executive
Directors of the Interﬁational Bank should forthwith report -the
circumstances to th@ir respective governments and to the Econcmic

and Social Council with reccumendations for any appropriate action,"

. In order to ascertain how far there might be such a lack and to

enable the following'session of the conference to considef possiblé.'

lines of action, the Conférencg had. adop%ed a resolution requesfing
"the Director-General to invite the assistance of the

United Ngtions, the Bank, and .ether approp;iate United Nations

agencies in preparing for consideration by the Council a fact-

finding stafement, conéerniﬁé all financing facilities, the use
being/made of tﬁem, and the nature of the demand for them"
and requesting ‘ . 4

*thelcounoil to prepare a report thereon for the next sessiop v

of the Conferénce.” '

The Council was @eeti;g in!Paris'in June and vas expécting‘the
report to be ready by Ma&. Turthermore FAO had received much
information and material froum various specialized agencies such
as the Internatiqnal Bank for Reconstruction and Develbpment. !

FAO was now analyzing all thelmaterial and inférmation thus s

received.,

/Ité own - I m



E/CH.1/Sub 3/SR.50
Page 5 -

Tts own report would contain four main sections: (1) a survey of
the mignitude of needs for investments; the survey would cover both
domestic and foreign financial requirements, with special emphasis
on the needs of agriculture and‘agricultural'development but would also
provide overall figures. It would be divided into threé main parts, the
first baséd on figures as shoﬁnkin various national economic pians; the
second devoting special.attention to agricultural developmgnt projected
wnder such. plans, and also indicating the finance required for those
agricultural development plans which in the opinion of FAO experts were
ripe for :execution in the next five years; the third part of this
section would analyze the applications actually submitted for international
loans, both agricultural and non-agricultural during the 1945-1948
period, It was however difficult at times to decide what exactly
constituted an applicatiohAfor an international loan, since preliminary
enquiries, for instance, regarding the possibility of such a loan
would not be considered as an application. +(2) International funds and
investments as a whole;. that section would give a comprehensive survey
of %he past flow of investments and of the'amounts which had been
invested in agriculture; but it had been found extremely difficult to
provide estimates of domestic investment for the underdeveloped countries
concerned; (3) factors influencing availability of invesgtment capital,
internal aﬁd’ekternal; (4) summary of the factual situation and of
additional éteps which might possibly be taken in that field,

/ It had been suggested that the above FAO study should be:consoli deted
with the report now being prepared by the Secretary-General of the United
Nations, under the Economic and Social Council resolution of 4 March 1949
concerning the economic deVelopmentlof underdeveloped countries.  Tat.
wduld hardly be feasible as FAO's report would cover a much wider
field than that of the Secretafy—General's report, and also in”viéw
of the fact that fhe FAO-report had to be presented while the Secretary~
General'ts report was still being prépared for the ninth Seséion of the
Economic and Sbcial Council, .

Regarding definite figures, he could only state that three quarters
of the total flow of public funds for foreign investment during the
1946-~1948 period had gone to highly developed countries, while only

one quarter had been used to meet the need of underdeveloped areas.

/The CHATRMAN



E/CN l/Sub 3/SR 50
Pagce 6

The. CHAIRMAN said that he was. surprieed that as much as one-
quarter had gone to underdeveloped countries, and he assumed that a
W1de.def1n1t10n had been used of what constituted ' underdeveloped

countries",

Mr. BZERLEL agreed thap a wide definition had been used. He
added that in the so-called underdeveloped category, Latin~American
countries had received quitesubsterntisl ercunto, Asian countries had
received very little, . Africa, by way of colonial development grants,

had rveceived more than A51a. il

Mr, LIEU said that the Secretariat stady of capltal movements
showed that highly developed countries invested very. llttle in the
development of manufacturing industries in underdeveloped countrles.
Ilarge-scale public utility.projects, such as electrlficatlon for instence
succeeded in raisingheufficient capital but the same could not be said
of manufacturing industriee. This gap corresponded to that previously
existing in the field ‘of technical a851stance which had been pointed
out by the Sub-Commission in the report on its second session. In
his view, there could be no economic development of a 5}ven country"
without the development of its manufacturing industries, and the reasons
for the existence of the gap whichxhe had pointed out should be further
gstudied and discussed.

He also wished to point oup that although it was reasonable to say
that, an underdeveloped country should supply its own financial resources
and not depend on foreign aid, that was a most difficult-if not
altogether impossible underpaking for countries with a low national
income.  Furthermore, their‘financiel\inetitutions were not adapted
for that kind of activity. Thds was at the same time a cause and
effect of a lack of economic development. , ’ .

The third point he wished to railse was that of the lack of eapital
equipment. Such equipment had to be imported from abroad by underi,
developed counﬁries and they were not alweys capable of exportdng' .
enough to pay for such. imports. Consequently, they needed loans to
pay for imports of capital equipment. In his view, the Sub-Commission

gnould emphasize- in ite report this aspect of the financing problem,

e

/Mr. Van der Valk'

1}



E/CN.1/Sub.3/SR 50
Page 7

" Mr. Van der VAIK said that the question of financing
manufacturing industries in underdeveloped countries should be examined
in a broader aspect,  Manufacturing industries usually requiréd a large
capital and it was also a more risky type of investment than public l
qtilities etc. They were, therefpre, too costly for dcmesﬁic resources
and too risky for private foreign investments. In scme countries, such
ag Chile for instance, the tasgk of deveiopiné public utilities, transport,
etc..was assumed by the goverrments concerned with the help of foreign
finance, while the developmentfof manufacturing industries was ca;ried out

by means of domestic financing through floafing industrial securities
cn’ dcmestic secgrity markets developed for this purpose.

Mr, LIBU replied that scﬁe countries would find it difficult
tc>flcatihdustrial gecurities, The syste@ had certain'disadvantages and

he understood that it had already led to ansiderable inflation in Chile.

Mr,; BRAVO JIMENEZ said that in considering the problem of

financing from the angle of its relation to the econamic development of
underdeveloped counv.ies as a wholé, an underdeveloped country could usefully
be compared to an enterprise. In financial terms,‘ah enterprise was sound
when the proportion of its risk or equity capital to total liabilities :
was such as to guarantee the develorment of the enterprise as a unit.
The finencial capital structure varied fram one industry to another corr-
esponding to variations in the technical ard econcmic requirements.
On the other hend, investments in same industries were made in.the form of
fixed assets and in others in ‘the form of liquid-assets. )

An underdeveloped country was like an enterprise with very limited
possibilities for building up its own equity or risk capital and had to
rely cn external, sources of finance. The extent to which its '
liabilities could grow was limited because it was dependent on the
,ecéncmic capacity of. the country. That econcmic capacity also limited
thé amount of foreign credit. which the national enterprise could absorb.

/An under-developed



E/CN l/Sub 3/SR. 50
aée

An ﬁnder—developed cOuntry wasg characterized by lack Of risk
capital and a great need fOr establishing fixed assets which cvuld be
ievelcpcd. Ceie-agpects Of the problem vas represented by the factirs
l*hitl ¢ & country's possibilities for developlng its own resCurces
for capitalization and subsequent 1nvestment, It was essential t© fOster
the formation Of internal capital in those countries.” In the process Of
econtmic develOpment, such a country ctuld build up its owhn financial
‘resOurces, but there was a danger that 1ts own economic pOlicy would
prove an Obgtacle tO such a bulldlng up, Indeed, the cOuntry's ecinimic
policy might be based ©on the establighment of a particular industry
without regard tO that iﬁdustpy's place in the economic structure of
the country as a whole, For ingtance, some under-develoOped cOuntries
might have develeed‘lOW-cést light industries which could have provided
a sOurce fOr savings and hence subsequent investments. Insﬁead, they may
start bullding up high-cOst heavy industries and in sO d0ing subject the
country toO fixed éharges'and raise the cost Of productiOn’in the light
industries., Thus the high-cOst heavy industries ‘would interfere ﬁithA
the growth of low-cOst light industries, total income would consequently
fall and as a result the building up Of available risk capital would dwindle.

It was als© essential t© see that availabie savings were not used
for purely banking purpCses without any regard t¢ the needs Of ecOPnfmic |

develOpment,

The CHAIPMAN agked Mr, BravO if his remarks implied that

fOrelbn loans shwuld be made mainly in the form Of risk capltal

Mr. BRAVU said that in a business unit the returns ‘on risk .
capital depended On the final result Of the business; the Cwners ¢f the
capital were not guaranteed a certain return., In sOme cases a specific
return was guaranteed fOr Other fOrms Of capital, which then fOrmed a
fixed charge‘on the business.. Similarly; in an under-develOped cOuntry
which had a limited amount of risk capital, the amSunt Of capital

representing a fixed charge had tO be increased,

The CHAIRMAN gaid it seemed t¢ him t0 fOllcyw from Mr, BravO‘
analysis that in an under-develOped cOuntry direct investment frum

foreign sOurces was mOre impCrtant than so-called "pOrtfolio" investment.

/Mr. BRAVO



E/CN.1/Sub,3/SR.50

Page 9O

Mr, BRAVO said the pdint‘which he had had in mind was the
desirability Of arranging fixed-interest cummitments thrlugh the gOvern-
ments Of underdevelOped cluntries, 80 as tv allOcate such funds through
the national enterprise and alg® tO know what the total fixed cOmmitments

7’

are,

Mgl PATEK, referring tO the repOrt On Internétional Capital
MOvements During the Inter-War Period, said he would like an explanation
ag tO0 the relation Of thOse investments t© the needs of under-developed-
cOuntries, It appeared tO him that in the Secretariat sﬁudy the inter-
natiotnal mOvement ©Of capital was apprCached from the pOint Of view Of the
investing cOuntries, whereas the bOrrcwer's interests were thOse which
should really be cUnsidered by the Sub-COimissioOn,

The CHAIRMAN said My, Patek's questiOn was implicitly answered
in the dOcument he had menticCned, frOm'Which‘hé himself inferred that
m0vemeﬁts of forgign—capital had not in the past been particularly
conducive tO the ecOnfmic develOpment ©f under-develCped oOuntries; They
had develOped either raw materials fOriexpOrts Or cOnstitgtéd branches
Operéﬁing abroad of cdncerns in the capital-expOrting cvuntries.
Cbviously investments had been made with the mOtive Of self-interest
of the investOrs; but that was .inevitable in a capitalist ecOntmy,
Private investments had been made fOr pro¢fits, while Jublic investments
were made largely from pOlitical mOtives, Tﬁat vag a dilemma which
capital-impOrting ectnCmies faced in the capitalist world. ‘ne Of the
Sub-COommission's tasks was tO find methods of foreign financing which
would be free from both thOse defects.

Mr, BRAVU JIMENEZ said that if it wes agreed that the main sOurce

Of capital fOrmation shoOuld be in the coﬁntry itself, difficulties
hindering the formation Of capital must be analyzed and elements

- > ] ) ’ - 3 . ,
cunducive t© an increase in capital formation cPnsidered.

The ‘CHAIRMAN said that question would be ctnsidered along:
with Mp/ Lieu!' s statement that reliance n dtmestic finance woOuld not
bring about speedy ecOnOmic develvpment, but that the Sub-COmmission

should first cimplete its general discussitn.-

ifr, EVANS



E/CN l/Sub 3/SR 50
Page 1

Mr. EVANS welcomed the discussion because the International
Labour Organization realized that the general social policies it was
pursuing would be difficult to implement unless means were found to
raise the standard of living in under-developed countries. That con-
81derat10n had led the I1.0 to pass certain general resolutlons on the
problem under discussion. He mentioned in particular the resolution
of the Preparatory Asian Regional Conference (E/780, paragraphs 15 (a)
and 21 (a) and (b), and the resolution of the Regional Meetings) for
the Near and Middle Bast. -

He suggested that it would be useful to have a document containing
a gemeral indication of the principles and methods most conducive to the
increase in savings and to.their proper channelling into econdmic develop-
ment. Buch a document might indicate the amounts that could be saved in
different countries, the institutions which could essist in that, how the
savings mlght best be employed etc.

On the gquestion of how the best use could be made of the limlted
amount of capital avallable he said that in the Preparatory Asian
Regional Conference great emphasis had been lald on small industries and
co-operative programmes.‘ Small industries might attract savings because
of the direct relationship between the industry and the investor, which could
make 1t eaeier to find the required capital. ' -

The CHAIRMAN said that the idea of small'indusfries had been
propounded for many years but the idea that this would increase local
savings available was new and he had seen no documents.setting out a
concrete stheme, or giving the actual experience of countriés which had
established and finaﬁced small industries on a planned basis.

He said the Sub-commission might note this question as a possible

item for the agenda of 1ts next session.

Mr. EZFKIEL said that documentation, which might be of
illustrativervalue, wae available on small industries in the less
developed parts of the United States of Amerioa, for example, in
the Tennessee Valley.Authority gcheme and the Rural Electrification

Administration.

/Mr. DORFMAN



E/CN. 1 Sub.3/SR 50

Page 1 5?
Mr., DORFMAN said the Secretariat was aware of the 1mportanc

of the questlon and some work in that field had already been started.
s

Mr. BRAVO, JIMENEZ said the technical aspects of the process of
industrialization were important, since techniques obsolete in industrialized
countries might be used with advantage in others. The problem of the

‘optimum plant also arose.

The CHAIRMAN said that if an unlimited supply of capital was
avallable the question became purely technical, but if not, it was also
a problem of maximizing the use of available capital; and from that p01nt
of view, small industries involving a sqaller rate of cap}tal investment

deserved to be studied.

Mr, EZEKIEL mentioned the fact that some work had been @ope on
that '‘problem by UNRRA . '

There was-a frequent tendency for technicians from the more developed
countries to. assume that highly developed techniques would be‘equally
advantageous‘in underdeveloped countries. This also applied to the
technicians of the underdeveloped countries themselves. Though labour :
might not be so cheap as formerly in tﬁe underdeveloped countries, the ratio
of labour cost to capital cost étill was much lower there than in highly

developed countries.

\ , .
Mr. COLIADO said it was found that the rates of return at which

foreign companies operated in underdeveloped countries were often not
attractive to local inveétors.\ Rates of interest in underdeveloped !
countries varied widely, but generally .they were very high; 6-8% for
commercial paper of 3-6 months' duration was not unusual. In reply to a
question by the Chairman, he said that & recent survey indicated that the
rate of dividend of all securities listed on the New York Stock Exchange,
which paid any dividend at all, had averaged in 1948 about 7 per cent of \
the market quotations of such securities. That statistic was: of course

of limited significance.

The CHAIRMAN said that rates of interest everywhere varied
within the same country but that in uﬁderdevelope@ countries there was a

greater range of variation.

/Mr. COLIADO



-%églg-.%ésm .3/SR 50

Mr. COLIADO said that in certain underdeveloped countries, for
example some of the Latin-American éountriés, where ‘there was a well-
organised financial market, rates of interest for certain types of
financing in limited volume were low. | : .

It Would‘belinteresting to analyze fhe returns ovanited‘Statesj
corporations'to~show that the retﬁrns neéeésary/to induce‘new equity
investment were often.higher thanvwas'generally beliéved, He also mentioned
the large ratio of profitsploughédback into.éapital which wasfusual in
the United States of America and in American direct investments abroad.

It would probably be found that investors in foreign enterprises?%%ought

home no greater profits than in%esfors in domestic enterprises.

Mr. GUIMARAES pnderstooa that domesﬁic and foreign investments
must, to & certain extent, be examined as'a whole since it was very difficult
to separate them. If an attempt were made, however,; to seﬁérate them, he
would suggest as a method of work that the Sub-Commission should first.
consider domestic‘investments both private and éovernméntal. It could
‘then analyze foreign investments by private and international agencies from
the pointy of view of public utilities, agriculture and indﬁstr&, and con- *
sider private foreign investments intended to supply the industry of the
investor coun@ry with raw materials, and those intended to supply it with
consumer goods. Subsequently the problems of diwersification and of the

terms of trade should be considered whicp were of pivotal importance.

The'meeting‘rose at 1,10 p, m.,





